
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Web: www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

STATUTORY OFFICER 
ADVISORY PANEL 

 
Councillor J A Kite, MBE (Chairman) 

Councillor C J Shippam (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor S N Gosine 
Councillor P M Harman 

Councillor A R Lloyd 
 
 

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on 

 
Friday 15 January 2021 at 9.30am 

 
 This meeting will be held virtually via Zoom. Details of how to view the public part of 

this meeting on YouTube are included in this agenda. 
 

 
Strategic Director (Internal Services) 

Thursday 7 January 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 

 



 

 
STATUTORY OFFICER ADVISORY PANEL 

AGENDA 
 

Friday 15 January 2021 at 9.30am 
 
 

Viewing this meeting on YouTube 

This meeting may be viewed on YouTube, whilst in open session, by opening the link 
below:  
 
https://youtu.be/lY1UzUmYF7U 

 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interests   

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board or 
the Strategic Director (Internal Services). 
 

 

3. Urgent Items   

4. Terms of Reference (Pages 1 - 2)  

 To note the terms of reference for the Statutory Officer Advisory 
Panel. 
 

 

5. Recruitment of Directors - Job Profiles, Organisational Structure 
and Job Advertisement (Pages 3 - 38) 

 

 To note the job profiles for the posts of Director of Growth & 
Community and Director of Housing & Public Protection, the 
organisational structure and job advertisement.  
 

 

Exclusion of the Press and Public 

To RESOLVE: That under section 100A(4)of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended), the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items 
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information. 
 

A. Recruitment of Director of Growth & Community: Candidate 
Interviews - Exempt Information Category SO46(1)(b) Annex 1 
Paragraph 1  

 

 To conduct interviews of short-listed candidates for the post of 
Director of Growth & Community and to recommend on appointment 
accordingly. 
 

 

https://youtu.be/lY1UzUmYF7U


 

Applications from short-listed candidates ‘to follow’. 
 

B. Recruitment of Director of Housing & Public Protection: 
Candidate interviews - Exempt Information Category SO46(1)(b) 
Annex1 Paragraph 1  

 

 To conduct interviews of short-listed candidates for the post of 
Director of Housing & Public Protection and to recommend  on 
appointment accordingly. 
 
Applications from short-listed candidates ‘to follow’. 
 

 

 



  

Terms of Reference Statutory Officer Advisory Panel August 2020 

 

D A R T F O R D B O R O U G H C O U N C I L  
 

STANDING COMMITTEES, BOARDS AND PANELS 
OF THE COUNCIL 

 

STATUTORY OFFICER ADVISORY PANEL  
[REPORTING TO COUNCIL [as detailed in these Terms of Reference] 

 
Chairman:          Councillor J A Kite BE 
Vice-Chairman: Councillor C J Shippam  
Membership:     Councillors A R Lloyd, S N Gosine and P M Harman   

 
[Membership must at all times include one Cabinet member. See the requirement to extend membership to Independent persons 
as detailed in B1.(b) below)] 

 

TERMS OF REFERENCE: 
 
APPOINTMENTS  

 
A1. DELEGATED FUNCTION:  
 
To interview shortlisted candidates for the posts of Head of Paid Service, Monitoring 
Officer and Section 151 Officer in accordance with Standing Order 60. 
To interview shortlisted candidates for the post of Director in accordance with Standing 
Order 60. 
 

A2. REFERRED FUNCTION: 
 
To recommend the appointment to the General Assembly of the Council, having first 
considered any material and well founded objection from Cabinet, under the Executive 
Objections Procedure, in accordance with Standing Order 60 

(Recruitment/Appointment of Statutory Officers). 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

DISCIPLINARY ACTION OF STATUTORY OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS  
 
B1. DELEGATED FUNCTION:  
 
(a) Subject to para.(b) below, to hold disciplinary hearings into: 
 

 conduct; 

 sickness absence (excluding situations involving permanent ill - health or infirmity 
of mind and body); 

 capability based on performance; 

 some other substantial reason (excluding redundancy situations) e.g. breakdown 
in relationships such as loss of trust and confidence or failure to renew a fixed 
term contract where an undertaking or commitment has been given to renew such 
a contract. 

 
(b) Where the independent investigator’s report recommends dismissal, the 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



  

Terms of Reference Statutory Officer Advisory Panel August 2020 

membership of the Panel is to be extended to include at least two Independent 
Persons appointed under the Localism Act 2011, in the following priority order: 

 
(i) an Independent Person who has been appointed by the Council and who is a 

local government elector; 
 (ii) another Independent Person who has been appointed by the Council; 
 (iii) an Independent Person who has been appointed by another local 

authority(ies). 
 
(c)  Having considered the evidence presented at the hearing:  
 

 to take no further action; or 

 to refer back to the independent investigator for further investigation and report; 
or 

 to issue a first written warning; or 

 to issue a final written warning; or 

 to take action short of dismissal; or  

 to recommend dismissal to the General Assembly of the Council in accordance 
with B2. below. 

 
B2. REFERRED FUNCTION: Dismissal 
 
To recommend to the General Assembly of the Council: 
 

 dismissal with notice; or 

 dismissal without notice, 
 

having first considered any material and well founded objection from Cabinet, under 
the Executive Objections Procedure, referred to in Standing Order 62 (Disciplinary 
Action in Respect of Statutory Officers and Directors). 

 
 

Page 2Agenda Item 4



Page 1 of 13 

 Job Profile 

 
Job Title: 

 Director of Growth & Community 
 
Grade: 

 

 
Reporting to: 

 

The Council’s political leadership, as part of the Executive Leadership Team 

 
Responsible for: 

 
Responsible for leadership of and strategic direction to the following service areas, via a team of 
Heads of Service: 
 

• Property Services 

• Economic Development 

• Planning  

• Community Services 

 
Experience: 

 

• Leadership of a diverse group of customer-facing services  

• Experience of leading a property service of comparable scale and complexity 

• Experience of leading and delivering relevant construction projects 

• Experience of developing strong partnership working with public and private sector, the 

community and voluntary sector 

 
Specialist Knowledge: 

 
Specialist knowledge of at least one of the above functional areas, including a track record in the 
management, development and delivery of a property portfolio. 
 

 
Qualifications: 

 
Post graduate qualification or memberships as appropriate to lead the above portfolio, for example 
RICS, CIOB, RTPI (or equivalent experience) 

 
Special Circumstances: 

This post is politically restricted as defined under the Local Government & Housing Act 1989 

P
age 3

A
genda Item

 5



Page 2 of 13 

 
 
 
 

 

Job Purpose: 

• As a member of Dartford Council’s executive leadership team provide strategic leadership to the 
organisation to ensure the delivery of the Council’s overall vision for the Borough.   

• Work closely and proactively with Members, colleagues on the executive leadership team, staff, 
partners, business and communities to ensure the best possible outcomes for the Borough. 

• Provide advice and support to Members on the development and delivery of key strategies and 
policies, bringing professional subject matter expertise for those functional areas within your portfolio. 

• Promote visible and inclusive leadership that demonstrates the behaviours and values of the Council 
and sets out a clear direction and expectation of performance standards. 

• As one of three members of the executive leadership team, lead and direct a portfolio of service areas, 
through an immediate management team of Heads of Service, empowering these individuals to 
develop and improve their service areas in line with the realisation of the Council’s vision for Dartford.   

• Ensure that service areas reporting directly to the post holder are efficient, effective and delivered 
within budget. 

• Lead a range of strategic and operational relationships external to the council, working with other 
agencies at a strategic level to develop solutions and strategies that support delivery of the Borough 
vision. 

• Through horizon scanning, benchmarking and engagement across industry and the public sector, 
innovate new approaches, including new models of service delivery and asset maximisation that 
ensure the Council can remain financially sustainable as well as improving the quality of service and 
outcome for residents, businesses and visitors. 

 
 

This, together with the competency levels is a description of the job as it is at present constituted. It is the practice of this Council to periodically review and 
update them to ensure that they relate to the job as then being performed, or to incorporate whatever changes are being proposed. You will be expected to 
participate fully in any discussions and, in connection with them, to re-write your job profile to bring it up-to-date if this is considered necessary or desirable, 
and to discuss it with your immediate superior. It is the Council’s aim to reach agreement on reasonable changes, but if agreement is not possible the Council 
reserves the right to insist on changes to your job description after consultation with you. As a term of your employment you can be required to undertake such 
other duties commensurate with your grade, and/or hours of work, as may reasonably be required of you.  All aspects of the post are to be carried out in 
compliance with the Council’s overall Policies and Procedures, and all post holders will frequently have access to confidential information and will maintain 
such confidentiality as required by the Council. 

P
age 4

A
genda Item

 5



Page 3 of 13 

Competency 
definition 

Skills/ 
Attributes 

 
Effective behaviours 

 
Ineffective behaviours 

CUSTOMER SERVICE & SUPPORT 

Takes personal 
responsibility  
for delivering an 
excellent  
service to meet 
internal & external 
customer needs 
              

• Responsive 

• Empathic 

• Approachable 

• Assertive 
 

• Is interested in customers & attentive to their needs 

• Treats customers politely & respectfully 

• Strives to build relationships with customers 

• Considers the impact of own behaviour & actions from a 
customer perspective 

• Makes it easy for customers to access the service 

• Encourages & uses customer feedback to improve the 
service 

• Acts assertively 

• Is open & realistic about what can be achieved 

• Sees things through & does what they say they will 

• Sees customers as interruptions to ‘the day job’ 

• Is abrupt, dismissive or patronising 

• Blames other people or other departments for 
mistakes 

• Avoids dealing with difficult customers 

• Gives poor service to customers seen as 
demanding 

• Allows the customer to suffer because of 
personal or internal issues 

 

RESPECTING DIVERSITY & EQUALITY 

Encourages & values 
the contribution of all 
people; recognises 
the benefits of 
difference 
 

• Respectful 

• Tolerant 

• Open minded 

• Challenging 
 

• Respects people from varied backgrounds 

• Is open to diverse views & sensitive to group differences 

• Sees diversity as opportunity & strength 

• Challenges bias & intolerance 

• Is aware of how own culture, beliefs & attitudes affect their 
behaviour 

• Tries to impose personal views & work 
methods 

• Ridicules others & dismisses their views 

• Assumes all people are the same 

• Ignores discrimination 

  

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 5



Page 4 of 13 

Competency 
definition 

Skills/ 
Attributes 

 
Effective behaviours 

 
Ineffective behaviours 

TEAM & PARTNERSHIP WORKING 

Committed to working 
with team, partners & 
the wider community 
to achieve common 
goals & ensure 
performance at the 
highest level 
 

• Co-operative 

• Reliable 

• Participative 

• Collaborative 
 

• Is a team player & makes the effort to participate fully in 
the team 

• Has a positive view of collaborative working 

• Shares appropriate information & knowledge willingly with 
others 

• Is reliable & approachable 

• Supports colleagues to achieve goals ideas &/or actions 

• Balances a focus on task with attention to relationships 

• Helps the team to try different ways of thinking & working 

• Understands the wider operating context & the impact of 
own role 

• Takes the credit for others’ work 

• Constantly distracts or disrupts the team 

• Cherry picks the best/most interesting tasks 

• Works in isolation or only with immediate 
colleagues with other people’s ideas & actions 

• Repeats ideas &/or actions 

COMMITMENT & ACCOUNTABILITY 

Committed to the 
Council’s vision and 
takes responsibility 
for their role in 
working towards it; 
understands how 
own actions can 
affect the Council  

• Conscientious 

• Loyal  

• Dedicated  

• Trustworthy 

• Takes pride in working for the Council 

• Does the job to the best of their ability 

• Is loyal to the values of the Council especially when 
communicating with others 

• Meets commitments & keeps promises 

• Works consistently to promote a positive working 
environment 

• Is aware of the impact of individual actions & behaviours 
on the reputation of the Council 

• Is prepared to admit mistakes 

• Puts self interest first & has an “I’m alright 
Jack” attitude 

• Maliciously or carelessly damages the 
reputation of the Council 

• Coasts along - only doing enough to get by 

• Blames the system or others for own poor 
performance 

 

  

P
age 6

A
genda Item

 5



Page 5 of 13 

 
Competency 

definition 

 
Skills/ 

Attributes 

 
 

Effective behaviours 

 
 

Ineffective behaviours 

ADAPTABILITY & FORWARD-THINKING 

 
Looks to the future, 
understanding & 
adapting to the need for 
change 

 

• Flexibility 

• Resilience 

• Creativity 

• Pro-active 

• Initiative 
 

 

• Takes the initiative to look for solutions rather than 
identifying problems 

• Is willing to try out new ideas & ways of working 

• Is receptive to change, reacts quickly & implements it 
positively 

• Adjusts well to shifting priorities & is confident in own 
skills & abilities 

• Adapts own behaviour in response to unexpected 
obstacles or challenges 

• Sees change as opportunity & makes the best of new 
situations 

 

• Takes change personally  

• Is inflexible & sticks to the same 
course of action 

• Is cynical & negative about change 

• Always takes a narrow view of own 
role 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 5



Page 6 of 13 

Competency 
definition 

Skills/ 
Attributes 

 
Effective behaviours 

 
Ineffective behaviours 

COMMUNICATION 

Communicates 
effectively in  
a clear, concise & 
open manner 

• Clarity 

• Sensitivity 

• Courtesy 

• Listening 
 

• Uses plain language to communicate clearly at all 
levels 

• Uses the simplest & most appropriate means of 
communication for the situation 

• Ensures understanding by listening carefully 

• Speaks as they would like to be spoken to themselves 

• Uses appropriate/effective body language & tone to 
improve communication 

• Adopts a consistently friendly & approachable manner 

• Shows sensitivity to others needs & feelings when 
communicating 

• Gives contradictory or conflicting messages 

• Is aggressive, sarcastic or patronising to others 

• Uses email to avoid difficult conversations 

• Hides behind jargon 

• Dominates conversations 

• Interrupts when others are speaking 
 

PERSONAL EFFECTIVENESS 

Is aware of own 
impact on others; 
works to develop 
own strengths & 
capabilities 

• Self-
awareness 

• Self-
confidence 

• Self-
composure 

• Realises that own feelings affect  performance 

• Is confident in own ability to work with others 

• Controls own behaviour & responses 

• Remains calm & level-headed under pressure 

• Organises time effectively, plans ahead & deals with 
issues that arise 

• Learns from experience, is open to feedback & able to 
ask for support when necessary.   

• Is indifferent to how they come across to others 

• Deliberately indulges in volatile or emotionally 
unpredictable behaviour 

• Takes personal problems out on others 

• Uses status or experience to undermine others 

• Intimidates or upsets others through destructive 
feedback 

• Uses non-verbal behaviour to express negative 
feelings 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 8

A
genda Item

 5



Page 7 of 13 

 
Competency 

definition 

 
Skills/ 

Attributes 

 
 

Effective behaviours 

 
 

Ineffective behaviours 

DEVELOPING PEOPLE & TEAMS 

 
Creates 
opportunities to 
maximise  
the potential of 
people & teams 

• Supportive 

• Empowering 

• Innovative 

• Coaching 
 

 

• Encourages people to work together as a team 

• Builds team identity & commitment 

• Develops staff through coaching & mentoring 

• Makes time available to support individuals 

• Encourages staff to make best use of their abilities 

• Gives praise where it is due 

• Successfully develops staff for future roles in the Council 
 

 

• Puts self-interest before staff interest 

• Is impatient with others when they ask 
for help 

• Doesn’t see any benefit in ‘team 
building’ 

• Blocks development opportunities 

DELIVERING RESULTS 

 
Achieves 
measurable results  
& continuous 
improvement 

 

• Timeliness 

• Quality focus 

• Planning/ 
organising 

• Decisiveness 

 

• Takes responsibility for ensuring plans are delivered on 
time & outcomes are monitored 

• Thinks ahead to spot problems or opportunities 

• Sets & meets challenging goals 

• Prioritises, prepares in advance & sets realistic 
timescales 

• Shows a creative & constructive approach to problem 
solving 

• Constantly seeks to improve the way things are done 

 

• Finds it difficult to say ‘No’ to 
unreasonable requests 

• Cannot see ‘the wood for the trees’ 

• Puts off making decisions 

• Is disorganised & works in chaos 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 5



Page 8 of 13 

 
 
 

 
Competency 

definition 

 
Skills/ 

Attributes 

 
 

Effective behaviours 

 
 

Ineffective behaviours 

MANAGING PEOPLE 

 
Committed to 
managing &  
motivating a high 
performing  
team. 
 

 

• Consistency 

• Assertiveness 

• Listening 

• Feedback 
 

 

• Clearly identifies & communicates what is 
expected of staff 

• Delegates effectively & knows when to step 
in & when not 

• Deals effectively & openly with difficult issues 

• Builds & maintains team motivation 

• Makes best use of team expertise to improve 
team performance 

• Provides regular feedback to manage, review 
& improve future performance 

• Is visible & approachable to staff 
 
 
 
 

 

• Is reluctant to deal with poor performance 

• Is inconsistent in approach to managing 
performance 

• Is only interested in the task & not the people 

• Shows favouritism by allocating tasks unfairly 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 10

A
genda Item

 5



Page 9 of 13 

 
 
 

 

Competency 
definition 

Skills/ 
Attributes 

 
Effective behaviours 

 
Ineffective behaviours 

PERSONAL IMPACT 

Operating effectively at 
individual, group & 
Council levels with the 
wider community 

Self development 
Self confidence 
Self awareness 
Professionalism 
Respect for others 
 

• Consistently sets a high standard of personal honesty, 
integrity & fairness. 

• Actively seeks feedback & opportunities for personal 

• Development. 

• Understands own strengths & weaknesses. 

• Is aware of personal impact on others. 

• Make explicit what they stand for in terms of their ethics 
values & standards of behaviour. 

• Learns from mistakes or resistance & moves on to achieve 
important objectives in other ways. 

• Demonstrates a “can do” attitude. 
 

• Takes the credit for others’ 
achievements/work. 

• Has blind spots about own abilities & 
does not see the need for development. 

• Is indiscreet. 

• Displays professional arrogance. 

• Is unapproachable. 
 

INFLUENCING & NEGOTIATING 

Builds effective 
relationships. 
Influences others to 
gain support for ideas 
& commitment for 
particular courses of 
action 

Credible 
Diplomatic 
Persuasive 
Adaptable 
 
 

• Promotes a friendly & co-operative climate. 

• Handles difficult situations with tact & diplomacy. 

• Uses a variety of means for influencing others. 

• Quickly establishes positive communication. 

• Works to build consensus & looks for win-win solutions. 

• Is aware of the impact of own actions & words. 

• Is assertive without being insensitive. 

• Adapts own style to impact positively on others. 

• Demoralises others 

• Is content to deliver what is adequate 

• Gives up easily 

• Backs away from difficult situations 

• To assertive 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 5



Page 10 of 13 

 
 
 

Competency 
definition 

Skills/ 
Attributes 

 
Effective behaviours 

 
Ineffective behaviours 

COMMUNICATION 

The ability to 
communicate in 
effective & 
compelling 
manner 

Persuasive 
Sensitivity 
Open minded 
 

• Communicates complex ideas in a way that can be easily understood. 

• Recognises their own preferred communication style, how it is received by 
others & if necessary be prepared to adapt or change. 

• Ability to communicate clearly & persuasively in order to get commitment from 
others. 

• Checks for shared understanding. 

• Uses communication methods that 
excludes others e.g. jargon. 

• Gives conflicting or contradictory 
messages. 

• Uses “one way” communication. 

• Fails to deliver difficult messages 
honestly & openly. 

STRATEGIC FOCUS & CORPORATE FOCUS 

Having an 
outward looking, 
long-term 
approach to 
develop & deliver 
the vision for the 
Council. 
 
Taking 
responsibility for 
the direction & 
performance of 
the Council as a 
whole 

Creativity 
Long-term 
planning 
(conceptual 
& analytical) 
Council 
awareness 
Direction setting 
Collaboration 
Initiative 
 

• Contributes effectively to strategic thinking. 

• Gets commitment to the vision from Members & key stakeholders. 

• Forecasts future scenarios & feeds these into planning processes. 

• Keeps up to date with & responds to Local Government challenges/agenda. 

• Evaluates options before making a choice. 

• Ensures strategy incorporates stakeholder needs. 

• Actively takes on a community leadership role. 

• Uses the vision to develop goals for Council change & improvement. 

• Focuses on service delivery in the context of corporate priorities. 

• Maximizes the potential for diversity within the Council for managing people. 

• Promotes a learning Council. 

• Evaluates performance against vision & strategy. 

• Challenges accepted practices. 

• Accepts existing assumptions & 
the prevailing culture. 

• Does not take account of the 
diverse needs of the community. 

• Is concerned with short term 
issues & detail. 

• Gets immersed in detail. 

• Fails to translate the vision into 
own service planning. 

• Has insular approach to job. 

• Blocks ideas & discussion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 5



Page 11 of 13 

 
 
 

Competency 
definition 

Skills/ 
Attributes 

 
Effective behaviours 

 
Ineffective behaviours 

MANAGING CHANGE 

Understands & 
applies sound 
principles for the 
management of 
change 

Adaptability 
Critical thinking 
Credibility 
Influence 

• Analyses the external & internal environment & understands the 
need to change. 

• Defines the change & assigns resources to its implementation. 

• Champions the agreed change & gains support from all 
stakeholders. 

• Manages feelings of insecurity & resistance to change. 

• Promotes efficient & effective communication practices 

• Delivers on promises. 

• Continually reviews, refines & learns from the results of the 
change programme. 

• Communicates the vision effectively & continually 
 

• Fails to understand reasons for 
resistance to change. 

• Sees change as upheaval rather 
than growth. 

• Creates a culture of distrust by 
sending mixed messages. 

• Does not involve & enthuse staff 
in the change process. 

• Fails to support staff through the 
change. 

MANAGING FOR RESULTS 

Working consistently 
to set & achieve 
objectives by 
establishing a culture 
of outcome-focussed 
working. 
 

Decisiveness 
Problem analysis 
Evaluation 
Assertiveness 
 

• Turns strategic goals into specific objectives & tasks that include 
equality & diversity targets. 

• Sets & agrees objectives which are realistic, achievable & cost 
effective taking into account available resources. 

• Ensures action plans are produced with clearly identifiable 
“milestones” of progress & achievement which are regularly 
reviewed. 

• Evaluates results & shares the learning with others. 

• Presents the arguments clearly, succinctly & assertively for a 
particular course of action. 

• Makes decisions on time. 

• Fails to identify the cause of 
problems. 

• Allows identified problems to drift 
& hopes for the best. 

• Refers difficult issues/problems to 
someone else. 

• Continues to follow a course of 
action when it is already proving 
unworkable. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 5



Page 12 of 13 

 
 

Competency 
definition 

Skills/ 
Attributes 

 
Effective behaviours 

 
Ineffective behaviours 

PARTNERSHIP WORKING 

 
Developing 
partnerships to 
support shared 
objectives & 
achieve 
collaborative 
working. 

 
Influence 
Networking 
Empathy 
Advocacy 
Diplomacy 
 

 

• Looks for opportunities to maximise resources/creative use of 
resources. 

• Strives to create the conditions for successful partnership working. 

• Recognises the role the Council plays in facilitating partnership 
working. 

• Acts as an ambassador for the Council in any context (adding 
value). 

• Mediates between conflicting interests to seek solutions. 

• Networks with other Councils & partner agencies to co-ordinate 
activities & share learning. 

 

 

• Thinks the Council has the right to 
decide. 

• Uses professional status as a 
block to partnership working. 

• Works only within own 
silo/Council. 

• Stays in the office! 
 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

 
Committed to 
engaging with 
stakeholders to 
continuously review 
& improve services. 

 
Influence 
Networking 
Empathy 
Advocacy 
Diplomacy 
 

 

• Seeks involvement from hard to reach & excluded groups. 

• Sets clear parameters to avoid unrealistic expectations. 

• Carries out consultation in a planned & measurable way. 

• Communicates appropriately using a range of techniques. 

• Changes the way things are done in response to what users have 
to say. 

• Feeds back to show people how their contributions affect decision-
making. 

 

 

• Arrogant &/or patronising attitude. 

• Favours one or more groups to 
the exclusion of others. 

• Conducts consultation in isolation 
from the rest of the Council. 

• Consults only to “tick the box”. 

• Consults with everybody in sight! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 5



Page 13 of 13 

 

Competency 
definition 

Skills/ 
Attributes 

                   
                    Effective behaviours 

 
            Ineffective behaviours 

MANAGING PEOPLE PERFORMANCE 

 
Committed to 
developing & 
maintaining a high 
performing workforce. 
 

 
Sets standards 
Delegation 
Teambuilding 
People 
development/  
succession 
planning  
Promotes 
equality 
& diversity 
Coaching & 
mentoring 
 

 

• Involves all staff by encouraging ideas & discussion. 

• Builds a sense of being valued & being part of something 
which is exciting & worthwhile e.g. regularly uses praise in 
a genuine & sincere way. 

• Builds teams with the appropriate skills mix to achieve 
objectives. 

• Allocates roles & responsibilities clearly & fairly. 

• Openly tackles conflicts/tensions & disputes. 

• Regularly reviews performance & encourages staff to take 
responsibility for their own development. 

• Provides timely, constructive & regular feedback & 
encourages staff to reciprocate. 

• Ensures that staff development implications are identified 
as a key element of any service development plan. 

• Develops individuals & builds on their strengths to meet 
the needs of the Council in the future. 

• Promotes openness & trust. 

• Challenges discriminatory behaviours. 
 

 

• Is inconsistent when dealing with people 
performance 

• Holds on to tasks they like to do. 

• Doesn’t believe in “team-building”. 

• Criticises performance without providing 
examples or support. 

• Provides vague objectives & is unclear 
about outcomes required. 

• Ignores poor performance & difficult 
issues. 

• Blocks development opportunities. 

• Interested only in the task & not the 
people. 

• Appoints/promotes/prefers people who 
offer no challenge to own position & will 
not be stretching to manage. 

• Passes on poor performers for others to 
deal with. 

 

 
 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 16



Page 1 of 13 

 Job Profile 

Job Title:  Director of Housing & Public Protection 
 
Grade: 

 

Reporting to: The Council’s political leadership, as part of the Executive Leadership Team. 

 
Responsible for: 

Responsible for leadership of and strategic direction to the following service areas, via a team of 
Heads of Service: 
 

• Housing Strategy & Management  

• Environmental Health 

• Enforcement & Regulatory Services 

• Waste & Sustainability including leadership of the Council’s green agenda 

• Parks & Open Spaces 

This postholder also serves as the Council’s Safeguarding Champion. 
 

 
Experience: 

• Leadership of a diverse group of customer-facing, front line services in local government 

• Experience of developing strong partnership working with public and private sector, the 

community and voluntary sector 

 
Specialist Knowledge: 

 
Specialist knowledge of at least one of the above functional areas, including a track record in the 
management, development and delivery of frontline local government services.  An enthusiasm 
and capability to deliver the Council’s ambitious green agenda. 
 

 
Qualifications: 

Post graduate qualification or memberships as appropriate to lead the above portfolio, for example 
CIH, CIEH, CIWM (or equivalent experience) 

 
Special Circumstances: 

This post is politically restricted as defined under the Local Government & Housing Act 1989 

 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 5



Page 2 of 13 

 
 
 

 

Job Purpose: 

• As a member of Dartford Council’s executive leadership team provide strategic leadership to the 
organisation to ensure the delivery of the Council’s overall vision for the Borough.   

• Work closely and proactively with Members, colleagues on the executive leadership team, staff, 
partners, business and communities to ensure the best possible outcomes for the Borough. 

• Provide advice and support to Members on the development and delivery of key strategies and 
policies, bringing professional subject matter expertise for those functional areas within your portfolio. 

• Promote visible and inclusive leadership that demonstrates the behaviours and values of the Council 
and sets out a clear direction and expectation of performance standards. 

• As one of three members of the executive leadership team, lead and direct a portfolio of service areas, 
through an immediate management team of Heads of Service, empowering these individuals to 
develop and improve their service areas in line with the realisation of the Council’s vision for Dartford.   

• Ensure that service areas reporting directly to the post holder are efficient, effective and delivered 
within budget. 

• Lead a range of strategic and operational relationships external to the council, working with other 
agencies at a strategic level to develop solutions and strategies that support delivery of the Borough 
vision. 

• Through horizon scanning, benchmarking and engagement across industry and the public sector, 
innovate new approaches, including new models of service delivery and asset maximisation that 
ensure the Council can remain financially sustainable as well as improving the quality of service and 
outcome for residents, businesses and visitors. 

 
 

This, together with the competency levels is a description of the job as it is at present constituted. It is the practice of this Council to periodically review and 
update them to ensure that they relate to the job as then being performed, or to incorporate whatever changes are being proposed. You will be expected to 
participate fully in any discussions and, in connection with them, to re-write your job profile to bring it up-to-date if this is considered necessary or desirable, 
and to discuss it with your immediate superior. It is the Council’s aim to reach agreement on reasonable changes, but if agreement is not possible the Council 
reserves the right to insist on changes to your job description after consultation with you. As a term of your employment you can be required to undertake such 
other duties commensurate with your grade, and/or hours of work, as may reasonably be required of you.  All aspects of the post are to be carried out in 
compliance with the Council’s overall Policies and Procedures, and all post holders will frequently have access to confidential information and will maintain 
such confidentiality as required by the Council. 

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 5



Page 3 of 13 

Competency 
definition 

Skills/ 
Attributes 

 
Effective behaviours 

 
Ineffective behaviours 

CUSTOMER SERVICE & SUPPORT 

Takes personal 
responsibility  
for delivering an 
excellent  
service to meet 
internal & external 
customer needs 
              

• Responsive 

• Empathic 

• Approachable 

• Assertive 
 

• Is interested in customers & attentive to their needs 

• Treats customers politely & respectfully 

• Strives to build relationships with customers 

• Considers the impact of own behaviour & actions from a 
customer perspective 

• Makes it easy for customers to access the service 

• Encourages & uses customer feedback to improve the 
service 

• Acts assertively 

• Is open & realistic about what can be achieved 

• Sees things through & does what they say they will 

• Sees customers as interruptions to ‘the day job’ 

• Is abrupt, dismissive or patronising 

• Blames other people or other departments for 
mistakes 

• Avoids dealing with difficult customers 

• Gives poor service to customers seen as 
demanding 

• Allows the customer to suffer because of 
personal or internal issues 

 

RESPECTING DIVERSITY & EQUALITY 

Encourages & values 
the contribution of all 
people; recognises 
the benefits of 
difference 
 

• Respectful 

• Tolerant 

• Open minded 

• Challenging 
 

• Respects people from varied backgrounds 

• Is open to diverse views & sensitive to group differences 

• Sees diversity as opportunity & strength 

• Challenges bias & intolerance 

• Is aware of how own culture, beliefs & attitudes affect their 
behaviour 

• Tries to impose personal views & work 
methods 

• Ridicules others & dismisses their views 

• Assumes all people are the same 

• Ignores discrimination 

  

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 5



Page 4 of 13 

Competency 
definition 

Skills/ 
Attributes 

 
Effective behaviours 

 
Ineffective behaviours 

TEAM & PARTNERSHIP WORKING 

Committed to working 
with team, partners & 
the wider community 
to achieve common 
goals & ensure 
performance at the 
highest level 
 

• Co-operative 

• Reliable 

• Participative 

• Collaborative 
 

• Is a team player & makes the effort to participate fully in 
the team 

• Has a positive view of collaborative working 

• Shares appropriate information & knowledge willingly with 
others 

• Is reliable & approachable 

• Supports colleagues to achieve goals ideas &/or actions 

• Balances a focus on task with attention to relationships 

• Helps the team to try different ways of thinking & working 

• Understands the wider operating context & the impact of 
own role 

• Takes the credit for others’ work 

• Constantly distracts or disrupts the team 

• Cherry picks the best/most interesting tasks 

• Works in isolation or only with immediate 
colleagues with other people’s ideas & actions 

• Repeats ideas &/or actions 

COMMITMENT & ACCOUNTABILITY 

Committed to the 
Council’s vision and 
takes responsibility 
for their role in 
working towards it; 
understands how 
own actions can 
affect the Council  

• Conscientious 

• Loyal  

• Dedicated  

• Trustworthy 

• Takes pride in working for the Council 

• Does the job to the best of their ability 

• Is loyal to the values of the Council especially when 
communicating with others 

• Meets commitments & keeps promises 

• Works consistently to promote a positive working 
environment 

• Is aware of the impact of individual actions & behaviours 
on the reputation of the Council 

• Is prepared to admit mistakes 

• Puts self interest first & has an “I’m alright 
Jack” attitude 

• Maliciously or carelessly damages the 
reputation of the Council 

• Coasts along - only doing enough to get by 

• Blames the system or others for own poor 
performance 

 

  

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 5



Page 5 of 13 

 
Competency 

definition 

 
Skills/ 

Attributes 

 
 

Effective behaviours 

 
 

Ineffective behaviours 

ADAPTABILITY & FORWARD-THINKING 

 
Looks to the future, 
understanding & 
adapting to the need for 
change 

 

• Flexibility 

• Resilience 

• Creativity 

• Pro-active 

• Initiative 
 

 

• Takes the initiative to look for solutions rather than 
identifying problems 

• Is willing to try out new ideas & ways of working 

• Is receptive to change, reacts quickly & implements it 
positively 

• Adjusts well to shifting priorities & is confident in own 
skills & abilities 

• Adapts own behaviour in response to unexpected 
obstacles or challenges 

• Sees change as opportunity & makes the best of new 
situations 

 

• Takes change personally  

• Is inflexible & sticks to the same 
course of action 

• Is cynical & negative about change 

• Always takes a narrow view of own 
role 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 5



Page 6 of 13 

Competency 
definition 

Skills/ 
Attributes 

 
Effective behaviours 

 
Ineffective behaviours 

COMMUNICATION 

Communicates 
effectively in  
a clear, concise & 
open manner 

• Clarity 

• Sensitivity 

• Courtesy 

• Listening 
 

• Uses plain language to communicate clearly at all 
levels 

• Uses the simplest & most appropriate means of 
communication for the situation 

• Ensures understanding by listening carefully 

• Speaks as they would like to be spoken to themselves 

• Uses appropriate/effective body language & tone to 
improve communication 

• Adopts a consistently friendly & approachable manner 

• Shows sensitivity to others needs & feelings when 
communicating 

• Gives contradictory or conflicting messages 

• Is aggressive, sarcastic or patronising to others 

• Uses email to avoid difficult conversations 

• Hides behind jargon 

• Dominates conversations 

• Interrupts when others are speaking 
 

PERSONAL EFFECTIVENESS 

Is aware of own 
impact on others; 
works to develop 
own strengths & 
capabilities 

• Self-
awareness 

• Self-
confidence 

• Self-
composure 

• Realises that own feelings affect  performance 

• Is confident in own ability to work with others 

• Controls own behaviour & responses 

• Remains calm & level-headed under pressure 

• Organises time effectively, plans ahead & deals with 
issues that arise 

• Learns from experience, is open to feedback & able to 
ask for support when necessary.   

• Is indifferent to how they come across to others 

• Deliberately indulges in volatile or emotionally 
unpredictable behaviour 

• Takes personal problems out on others 

• Uses status or experience to undermine others 

• Intimidates or upsets others through destructive 
feedback 

• Uses non-verbal behaviour to express negative 
feelings 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 5



Page 7 of 13 

 
Competency 

definition 

 
Skills/ 

Attributes 

 
 

Effective behaviours 

 
 

Ineffective behaviours 

DEVELOPING PEOPLE & TEAMS 

 
Creates 
opportunities to 
maximise  
the potential of 
people & teams 

• Supportive 

• Empowering 

• Innovative 

• Coaching 
 

 

• Encourages people to work together as a team 

• Builds team identity & commitment 

• Develops staff through coaching & mentoring 

• Makes time available to support individuals 

• Encourages staff to make best use of their abilities 

• Gives praise where it is due 

• Successfully develops staff for future roles in the Council 
 

 

• Puts self-interest before staff interest 

• Is impatient with others when they ask 
for help 

• Doesn’t see any benefit in ‘team 
building’ 

• Blocks development opportunities 

DELIVERING RESULTS 

 
Achieves 
measurable results  
& continuous 
improvement 

 

• Timeliness 

• Quality focus 

• Planning/ 
organising 

• Decisiveness 

 

• Takes responsibility for ensuring plans are delivered on 
time & outcomes are monitored 

• Thinks ahead to spot problems or opportunities 

• Sets & meets challenging goals 

• Prioritises, prepares in advance & sets realistic 
timescales 

• Shows a creative & constructive approach to problem 
solving 

• Constantly seeks to improve the way things are done 

 

• Finds it difficult to say ‘No’ to 
unreasonable requests 

• Cannot see ‘the wood for the trees’ 

• Puts off making decisions 

• Is disorganised & works in chaos 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 5



Page 8 of 13 

 
 
 

 
Competency 

definition 

 
Skills/ 

Attributes 

 
 

Effective behaviours 

 
 

Ineffective behaviours 

MANAGING PEOPLE 

 
Committed to 
managing &  
motivating a high 
performing  
team. 
 

 

• Consistency 

• Assertiveness 

• Listening 

• Feedback 
 

 

• Clearly identifies & communicates what is 
expected of staff 

• Delegates effectively & knows when to step 
in & when not 

• Deals effectively & openly with difficult issues 

• Builds & maintains team motivation 

• Makes best use of team expertise to improve 
team performance 

• Provides regular feedback to manage, review 
& improve future performance 

• Is visible & approachable to staff 
 
 
 
 

 

• Is reluctant to deal with poor performance 

• Is inconsistent in approach to managing 
performance 

• Is only interested in the task & not the people 

• Shows favouritism by allocating tasks unfairly 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 5



Page 9 of 13 

 
 
 

 

Competency 
definition 

Skills/ 
Attributes 

 
Effective behaviours 

 
Ineffective behaviours 

PERSONAL IMPACT 

Operating effectively at 
individual, group & 
Council levels with the 
wider community 

Self development 
Self confidence 
Self awareness 
Professionalism 
Respect for others 
 

• Consistently sets a high standard of personal honesty, 
integrity & fairness. 

• Actively seeks feedback & opportunities for personal 

• Development. 

• Understands own strengths & weaknesses. 

• Is aware of personal impact on others. 

• Make explicit what they stand for in terms of their ethics 
values & standards of behaviour. 

• Learns from mistakes or resistance & moves on to achieve 
important objectives in other ways. 

• Demonstrates a “can do” attitude. 
 

• Takes the credit for others’ 
achievements/work. 

• Has blind spots about own abilities & 
does not see the need for development. 

• Is indiscreet. 

• Displays professional arrogance. 

• Is unapproachable. 
 

INFLUENCING & NEGOTIATING 

Builds effective 
relationships. 
Influences others to 
gain support for ideas 
& commitment for 
particular courses of 
action 

Credible 
Diplomatic 
Persuasive 
Adaptable 
 
 

• Promotes a friendly & co-operative climate. 

• Handles difficult situations with tact & diplomacy. 

• Uses a variety of means for influencing others. 

• Quickly establishes positive communication. 

• Works to build consensus & looks for win-win solutions. 

• Is aware of the impact of own actions & words. 

• Is assertive without being insensitive. 

• Adapts own style to impact positively on others. 

• Demoralises others 

• Is content to deliver what is adequate 

• Gives up easily 

• Backs away from difficult situations 

• To assertive 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 5



Page 10 of 13 

 
 
 

Competency 
definition 

Skills/ 
Attributes 

 
Effective behaviours 

 
Ineffective behaviours 

COMMUNICATION 

The ability to 
communicate in 
effective & 
compelling 
manner 

Persuasive 
Sensitivity 
Open minded 
 

• Communicates complex ideas in a way that can be easily understood. 

• Recognises their own preferred communication style, how it is received by 
others & if necessary be prepared to adapt or change. 

• Ability to communicate clearly & persuasively in order to get commitment from 
others. 

• Checks for shared understanding. 

• Uses communication methods that 
excludes others e.g. jargon. 

• Gives conflicting or contradictory 
messages. 

• Uses “one way” communication. 

• Fails to deliver difficult messages 
honestly & openly. 

STRATEGIC FOCUS & CORPORATE FOCUS 

Having an 
outward looking, 
long-term 
approach to 
develop & deliver 
the vision for the 
Council. 
 
Taking 
responsibility for 
the direction & 
performance of 
the Council as a 
whole 

Creativity 
Long-term 
planning 
(conceptual 
& analytical) 
Council 
awareness 
Direction setting 
Collaboration 
Initiative 
 

• Contributes effectively to strategic thinking. 

• Gets commitment to the vision from Members & key stakeholders. 

• Forecasts future scenarios & feeds these into planning processes. 

• Keeps up to date with & responds to Local Government challenges/agenda. 

• Evaluates options before making a choice. 

• Ensures strategy incorporates stakeholder needs. 

• Actively takes on a community leadership role. 

• Uses the vision to develop goals for Council change & improvement. 

• Focuses on service delivery in the context of corporate priorities. 

• Maximizes the potential for diversity within the Council for managing people. 

• Promotes a learning Council. 

• Evaluates performance against vision & strategy. 

• Challenges accepted practices. 

• Accepts existing assumptions & 
the prevailing culture. 

• Does not take account of the 
diverse needs of the community. 

• Is concerned with short term 
issues & detail. 

• Gets immersed in detail. 

• Fails to translate the vision into 
own service planning. 

• Has insular approach to job. 

• Blocks ideas & discussion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 5



Page 11 of 13 

 
 
 

Competency 
definition 

Skills/ 
Attributes 

 
Effective behaviours 

 
Ineffective behaviours 

MANAGING CHANGE 

Understands & 
applies sound 
principles for the 
management of 
change 

Adaptability 
Critical thinking 
Credibility 
Influence 

• Analyses the external & internal environment & understands the 
need to change. 

• Defines the change & assigns resources to its implementation. 

• Champions the agreed change & gains support from all 
stakeholders. 

• Manages feelings of insecurity & resistance to change. 

• Promotes efficient & effective communication practices 

• Delivers on promises. 

• Continually reviews, refines & learns from the results of the 
change programme. 

• Communicates the vision effectively & continually 
 

• Fails to understand reasons for 
resistance to change. 

• Sees change as upheaval rather 
than growth. 

• Creates a culture of distrust by 
sending mixed messages. 

• Does not involve & enthuse staff 
in the change process. 

• Fails to support staff through the 
change. 

MANAGING FOR RESULTS 

Working consistently 
to set & achieve 
objectives by 
establishing a culture 
of outcome-focussed 
working. 
 

Decisiveness 
Problem analysis 
Evaluation 
Assertiveness 
 

• Turns strategic goals into specific objectives & tasks that include 
equality & diversity targets. 

• Sets & agrees objectives which are realistic, achievable & cost 
effective taking into account available resources. 

• Ensures action plans are produced with clearly identifiable 
“milestones” of progress & achievement which are regularly 
reviewed. 

• Evaluates results & shares the learning with others. 

• Presents the arguments clearly, succinctly & assertively for a 
particular course of action. 

• Makes decisions on time. 

• Fails to identify the cause of 
problems. 

• Allows identified problems to drift 
& hopes for the best. 

• Refers difficult issues/problems to 
someone else. 

• Continues to follow a course of 
action when it is already proving 
unworkable. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 5



Page 12 of 13 

 
 

Competency 
definition 

Skills/ 
Attributes 

 
Effective behaviours 

 
Ineffective behaviours 

PARTNERSHIP WORKING 

 
Developing 
partnerships to 
support shared 
objectives & 
achieve 
collaborative 
working. 

 
Influence 
Networking 
Empathy 
Advocacy 
Diplomacy 
 

 

• Looks for opportunities to maximise resources/creative use of 
resources. 

• Strives to create the conditions for successful partnership working. 

• Recognises the role the Council plays in facilitating partnership 
working. 

• Acts as an ambassador for the Council in any context (adding 
value). 

• Mediates between conflicting interests to seek solutions. 

• Networks with other Councils & partner agencies to co-ordinate 
activities & share learning. 

 

 

• Thinks the Council has the right to 
decide. 

• Uses professional status as a 
block to partnership working. 

• Works only within own 
silo/Council. 

• Stays in the office! 
 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

 
Committed to 
engaging with 
stakeholders to 
continuously review 
& improve services. 

 
Influence 
Networking 
Empathy 
Advocacy 
Diplomacy 
 

 

• Seeks involvement from hard to reach & excluded groups. 

• Sets clear parameters to avoid unrealistic expectations. 

• Carries out consultation in a planned & measurable way. 

• Communicates appropriately using a range of techniques. 

• Changes the way things are done in response to what users have 
to say. 

• Feeds back to show people how their contributions affect decision-
making. 

 

 

• Arrogant &/or patronising attitude. 

• Favours one or more groups to 
the exclusion of others. 

• Conducts consultation in isolation 
from the rest of the Council. 

• Consults only to “tick the box”. 

• Consults with everybody in sight! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 5



Page 13 of 13 

 

Competency 
definition 

Skills/ 
Attributes 

                   
                    Effective behaviours 

 
            Ineffective behaviours 

MANAGING PEOPLE PERFORMANCE 

 
Committed to 
developing & 
maintaining a high 
performing workforce. 
 

 
Sets standards 
Delegation 
Teambuilding 
People 
development/  
succession 
planning  
Promotes 
equality 
& diversity 
Coaching & 
mentoring 
 

 

• Involves all staff by encouraging ideas & discussion. 

• Builds a sense of being valued & being part of something 
which is exciting & worthwhile e.g. regularly uses praise in 
a genuine & sincere way. 

• Builds teams with the appropriate skills mix to achieve 
objectives. 

• Allocates roles & responsibilities clearly & fairly. 

• Openly tackles conflicts/tensions & disputes. 

• Regularly reviews performance & encourages staff to take 
responsibility for their own development. 

• Provides timely, constructive & regular feedback & 
encourages staff to reciprocate. 

• Ensures that staff development implications are identified 
as a key element of any service development plan. 

• Develops individuals & builds on their strengths to meet 
the needs of the Council in the future. 

• Promotes openness & trust. 

• Challenges discriminatory behaviours. 
 

 

• Is inconsistent when dealing with people 
performance 

• Holds on to tasks they like to do. 

• Doesn’t believe in “team-building”. 

• Criticises performance without providing 
examples or support. 

• Provides vague objectives & is unclear 
about outcomes required. 

• Ignores poor performance & difficult 
issues. 

• Blocks development opportunities. 

• Interested only in the task & not the 
people. 

• Appoints/promotes/prefers people who 
offer no challenge to own position & will 
not be stretching to manage. 

• Passes on poor performers for others to 
deal with. 

 

 
 

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 30



Director Growth & 

Community

Economic 

development;

Business support;

Planning;

Building Control;

Asset Management;

Major Projects;

Comms;

Customer Services

Leisure;

Events;

Youth Council

Elders Forum

Health

Director 

Corporate Services 

Director Housing 

& Public 

Protection

Finance;

Treasury 

Management;

Internal Audit;

Legal;

HR;

IT;

Property Info & 

GIS & Land 

Charges

Elections;

Democratic 

Services;

Revs & Bens

Housing (Landlord 

Services);

Private Sector 

Housing;

Strategic Housing;

EH;

Waste & Cleansing

Parks & Open Spaces

Bereavement 

Services;

Licensing;

Parking Services;

Community Safety;

Enforcement

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 5



Director Corporate 

Services (Head Paid 

Services)

Head of Finance 

(s151 Officer) ICT Manager
HR Manager Head of Legal 

Services

Financial 

management;

Treasury 

management;

Procurement;

Payments;

Insurance;

Internal Audit;

Revs & Bens

IT Network & 

infrastructure;

IT Business 

support;

Telecomms;

Website;

Property Info & 

GIS;

Land Charges

Legal Services;

Democratic 

Services;

Members support

HR;

Payroll (Client)

Electoral Services

Executive Office

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 5



Director Growth 

& Community

Property Services 

Manager 

Economic 

Development 

Manager

Head of Planning 

Services 

Community 

Services Manager 

Valuation;

Asset 

management;

Major projects;

Corporate 

Property 

maintenance;

Civic Centre FM

Business support;

Promotions;

Sponsorship;

Town Centre 

management;

Markets;

Funding bids;

Comms

Place monitoring;

Corporate policy;

Corporate plan;

Equalities;

Events & Leisure;

Museum;

Health;

Youth Council;

Elders Forum

Strategic planning;

Planning Policy;

Development 

Management;

Planning 

enforcement;

Building Control;

Transport planning

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 5



Director Housing

& Public 

Protection (MO)

Head of Housing
Environmental 

Health Manager
EARS Manager Waste & Parks 

Manager

Strategic Housing;

New Build;

Housing Policy;

Housing Mgt;

Repairs;

PS Housing;

Climate 

change/Energy 

efficiency/Fuel 

poverty

Environmental 

Protection;

Air Quality;

Contaminated 

land;

Food Safety;

Health & Safety;

Animal Welfare;

Licensing/

registration

Waste collection;

Street cleansing;

Grounds 

maintenance;

Parks & Open 

Spaces;

Allotments;

Cafe;

Bereavement 

Services

Licensing;

Environmental 

Enforcement;

Parking Services;

Community 

Safety;

CCTV;

Emergency 

Planning

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 5



Director opportunities at Dartford Borough Council – Job Advertisement  

Dear Applicant 

Thank you for your interest in joining Dartford as we continue to transform our Borough. 
This council has a record of real achievement and a profile within national and regional government 
that creates a place where talented people want to work and stay. We recruit for the long-term and 
have been rewarded over the years with low executive turnover, political stability and a genuinely 
collaborative working atmosphere. 

This recruitment arises from a review of our executive management arrangements following the 
passing of our highly regarded Managing Director, Graham Harris. Graham served the Borough with 
style and distinction for more than 20 years and created a legacy of vision, decency and financial 
responsibility   Thanks in no small part to him, we are in a good financial position that leaves us not 
facing a period of austerity or withdrawal of services but one of opportunities and properly managed 
recovery to continue to serve our residents and businesses well. 

Our review led us to a natural move to a three-person executive management group, comprising the 
existing Director of Internal Services alongside two externally facing Directors.  Dartford Borough 
Council may be a small authority, but it punches well above its weight in terms of the ambitions we 
realise, the importance to the region's growth agenda and the nationally significant assets we are host 
to: everything from the Dartford River Crossing, Bluewater, an international high speed rail station, 
Ebbsfleet Garden City, the proposed London Resort theme park and one of the UK’s largest trading 
and logistical hubs.  Today, we are in the midst of one of the largest town centre regeneration 
programmes in the region.  

High profile projects are nice, but you will be expected to be equally passionate about the work we do 
to deliver improved facilities and opportunities to residents. In recent years, we have delivered an 
award winning eco-football stadium, a town cricket pavilion, the regeneration of our Edwardian Park, 
a new Rugby Club and the transformation of leisure centres and heritage buildings. 

Here in Dartford, we certainly hear the calling of our obligations as a high growth are area and unique 
location for business, but the voices of our residents (new and existing) are louder still.  Everything we 
do must generate a benefit and an opportunity for Dartford people, businesses and families.  

If you are smart enough for these roles, you will be smart enough to know that a Council Leader will 
always paint an encouraging picture of the prospects, opportunities and sheer sense of possibilities 
presented by working for a friendly, stable and interesting Council.   This time it’s true.   Dartford really 
IS at the heart of so many things and our council IS collaborative, focused and successful.  That’s why 
it matters so much who joins us.  

I hope this introduction to Dartford has fired your enthusiasm and you choose to apply for one of the 
roles on offer.  Please register your interest with our consultants at HAYS Executive and I hope we get 
the opportunity to meet as the recruitment process unfolds. 

Yours faithfully 

Jeremy Kite MBE 
Leader of Dartford Borough Council 
 

 

 

 

Page 35 Agenda Item 5



Our Borough 

Dartford is a busy and high-profile town 18 miles east of central London. The Borough 
of Dartford comprises the main town settlement and several rural and semi-rural communities set in 
beautiful Kent countryside. Our strategic location close to London, the M25 and with world-class high 
speed international rail and community infrastructure has seen the Borough become a huge focus for 
growth.   We benefit from excellent primary, secondary and further education provision and high 
levels of employment and earnings.  

Leisure and culture is increasingly well provided for in a number of parks, open spaces and live 
performance facilities including The Orchard Theatre, the Mick Jagger Centre and the Council’s own 
outdoor theatre. The town’s 26 acre Central Park (one of two main parks close to the centre) has 
undergone a £multi-million Edwardian restoration and now offers a new bandstand, cafe and 
extensive gardens.  Recent investment has boosted sports and leisure provision to include Fairfield 
leisure, an award winning eco-football stadium and new facilities for cricket, rugby and 
athletics.  Before Covid, our town boasted a full calendar of events and activities for local people 
including an annual Festival, Children’s Book Festival, outdoor theatre season, free cinema in the Park, 
Christmas events and parades to celebrate St George’s Day and the Festival of Light.  

Dartford has a proud industrial history; the country’s first paper mill was built in the town in 1588 and 
iron making was for centuries a critical part of the local economy. While our economy has changed 
beyond recognition, our unemployment rate is much lower than the national average, and our largest 
employer is the Bluewater Shopping Centre, employing nearly 7000 people. There are also many 
exciting regeneration projects helping to shape the borough’s future, and our proximity and transport 
links to London mean we are an attractive commuter option. 

Whatever assets, landscape and facilities we may boast, there is nothing more important than 
Dartford’s people.  We are looking for people at every level who understand and appreciate the 
ambitions and demands of a real community. 

 
Our Values and Behaviours 

The challenges affecting local government in the 21st century are enormous and require a set of new 
approaches by Councils, to service delivery and to customer engagement. In response, we developed 
a competency framework to provide employees of the Council with a clear statement of the skills and 
behaviours needed to sustain continuous improvement in service delivery. Our 12 leadership 
competencies are: 

Personal Impact | Operating effectively at individual, group and Council levels with the wider 
community 

Influencing & Negotiating | Builds effective relationships Influences others to gain support for ideas 
and commitment for particular courses of action 

Communication | The ability to communicate in effective and compelling manner 

Strategic Focus & Corporate Focus | Having an outward looking, long-term approach to develop and 
deliver the vision for the Council. Taking responsibility for the direction and performance of the 
Council as a whole 

Managing Change | Understands and applies sound principles for the management of change 

Managing for Results | Working consistently to set and achieve objectives by establishing a culture of 
outcome-focused working 

Partnership Working | Developing partnerships to support shared objectives and achieve 
collaborative working 

Page 36Agenda Item 5



Community Engagement | Committed to engaging with stakeholders to continuously review and 
improve services 

Managing People Performance | Committed to developing and maintaining a high performing 
workforce 

Managing Projects & Resources | Ensuring projects contribute towards the Council’s objectives and 
that the capacity/capability is available to deliver these 

Customer Focused Delivery | Ensuring that the service is focused on the needs of the customer 

Political Knowledge & Sensitivity | Working with and supporting members to understand the impact 
on the Council of political interests and the wider agenda. Understanding members’ issues 

 
Opportunities 

Dartford has transformed over the last ten years, as part of the Thames Gateway growth area. As a 
local authority we have been at the forefront of this transformation, working in partnership to drive 
new investment, secure new homes and advance the regeneration of our town centre. We have 
changed as a Council too, modernising our services to reflect the changing communities we serve and 
to meet their aspirations for Dartford as the place to live, work and visit. 

We have delivered a great deal but there is so much more that we want to do for our place and our 
communities. We have re-imagined our Council’s executive management team, creating two, 
externally facing Director roles that, together with the Council’s Director of Corporate Services, will 
provide the capacity, expertise and leadership to secure our ambitions for Dartford./p> 

Director of Growth & Community 

Salary: c£100k 

Our Director of Growth & Community will secure the realisation of our exciting plans for the Borough’s 
places and infrastructure, working with landowners, developers and other key partners. You will help 
drive the economic success of the Borough, creating the conditions for inward investment and 
promoting Dartford as a premier destination for business. To succeed in this role we would expect you 
to bring successful experience in a leadership role in property and development, as well as enthusiasm 
to take on a wider portfolio of services that promote community wellbeing and cohesion in the 
Borough. 

Director of Housing & Public Protection 

Salary: c£100k 

Our Director of Housing & Public Protection will lead and develop our housing services, including our 
new build programme and housing management for our 4000 Council Homes. You will also take the 
lead on the Council’s ‘Planet Dartford’ initiative and oversee a wide range of environment, regulatory 
and enforcement services that keep our Borough clean, safe and green. We would expect you to bring 
experience of providing senior strategic leadership to a wide range of front line local government 
services. 

 

For both roles, your contribution as part of the Council’s executive management team will be as 
important as your professional expertise. We will look to you to embody and champion our values and 
provide the corporate leadership that helps us deliver our vision for the area. 

 

Page 37 Agenda Item 5



How to apply 

We want to make the process of applying as straight forward as possible. To this end, we ask that your 
application consists of the following: 

 A covering letter, no more than four pages in length, which addresses and provides evidence 
against the criteria, set out in the Person Specification. The covering letter provides you with 
the opportunity to explain your motivation for applying, as well as highlighting how your 
experience and achievements fit with the requirements of the role. As such, it is an important 
part of the application process. Please do confirm for which of the two positions you are 
applying. 

 A copy of your most recent and up to date curriculum vitae. 

 Please also provide details on two employer referees, which should include your current or 
most recent employer. Please note that references will not be taken without your permission. 

Once you have completed your application, please click on the relevant Apply link to upload your 
Curriculum Vitae and Covering Letter. All applications will be acknowledged.  

Further information 

For an informal conversation about Dartford, please contact Mark Bearn of Hays Executive on 07872 
672290 or email Mark.bearn@hays.com 

Key dates 

Closing date: 
Monday 14th December 
Preliminary Interviews(via MS Teams): 
January 2021 to be confirmed 
Officer Panels: 
January 2021 to be confirmed 
Psychometric and Behavioural Profiling: 
January 2021 to be confirmed 
Final Member Panel: 
January 2021 to be confirmed 
Footer 

 

Page 38Agenda Item 5

tel:07872672290
tel:07872672290
mailto:Mark.bearn@hays.com

	Agenda
	4 Terms of Reference
	5 Recruitment of Directors - Job Profiles, Organisational Structure and Job Advertisement
	Director+of+Housing+&+Public+Protection Role Profile
	Management Structure Charts
	Job Advertisement - Director opportunities at Dartford Borough Council


